
 
 

 

TALENT CITY COUNCIL 

        REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TOWN HALL  

June 15, 2016 – 6:45 P.M. 

 

Study Session, Regular Council & TURA meetings are being digitally recorded and will be available on the City 

website  

 
The City Council of the City of Talent will meet in a Regular Council session at 6:45 P.M on Wednesday, June 15th in the Town 

Hall, 206 E. Main Street.  The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 

hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the 

meeting to the City Recorder at 541-535-1566, ext. 1012. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any other 

business deemed necessary at the time of the study session and/or meeting.  

   

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING- 6:45 PM 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City Recorder. Public 

Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be 

called upon during the “Citizens Heard on Non-agenda Items” section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda 

items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by the City Council. 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

 

3. Community Announcements  

 

 3.1 Pollinator Week Proclamation………………………………………………………....Page 3  

    

4.             Public Hearings  

Public hearings are conducted under a prescribed procedure depending on the topic. The presiding officer will 

conduct the hearing in accordance with those procedures which will allow for public input at the announced time. 

 

4.1 Adoption of the FY 2016-17  Budget…………………………………………Page 4-9  

 

 Adopt Resolution 16-939-R, Certifying the City’s eligibility to receive State 

Shared Revenues. 

 

 Adopt Resolution 16-940-R, Electing to receive State Shared Revenues.  

 

 Adopt Resolution 16-941-R, Adopting the City of Talent annual budget, 

levying taxes and categorizing taxes 

 

5.            Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items  

Limited to 5 minutes or less per Mayoral discretion 

 

 

6. Public Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential future action 

items. Time limited to 15 minutes per presentation unless prior arrangements have been made. 

 

6.1   None  

 

7. Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single action. Any 

Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered separately on request.  

 

7.1 Approval of Regular Council Meeting Minutes for June 1, 2016…………Page 10-14 

7.2 Accounts Payable…………………………………………………………….Page 15-18 1



   

8. Regular Agenda 

 

Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given their report and if 

there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. Action items are expected to result in motions, 

resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 

 

 

8.1 Noise Permit for Ginger Johnson & Larry Chase…………………………Page 19 

8.2 Discretionary Fund disbursements: 

 Together for Talent…………………………………………………………..Page 20-22 

 Talent Historical Society…………………………………………………….Page 23-24 

 Talent Public Arts Committee………………………………………………Page 25 

 Talent Chamber………………………………………………………………Page 26-27 

8.3 Adopt Resolution 16-942-R, A Resolution establishing a fee schedule for the City of 

Talent Water Rates. Repealing Resolution 16-937-R………………………Page 28-29 

8.4  Adopt Resolution 16-943-R, A Resolution extending workers’ compensation 

coverage to volunteers of City of Talent…………………………………….Page 30-32 

8.5 CIP Town Hall Allocation……………………………………………………Page 33-34 

8.6 CIP Project Closing to Unallocated………………………………………….Page 35 

8.7 Second Reading Ordinance, 16-918-O, An Ordinance amending the Talent Zoning 

Code…………………………………………………………………………....Page 36-37 

8.8 First Reading of Ordinance 16-919-O, an Ordinance for the disposition and 

impounding of discarded vehicles and repealing Ordinance 16-888-O …..Page 38-45 

8.9 First Reading of Ordinance 16-920-O, an Ordinance establishing rules and 

regulations for the installation of water meters in mobile home parks and multi-

family dwellings and repealing Ordinance 15-894-O……………………….Page 46-47 

8.10 Phoenix Water Agreement…………………………………………………...Page 48-49  

                   

9.   Information Items 

      

  9.1 Legislative Priority Packet…………………………………………………Page 50-68 

  9.2 Mowing City Property……………………………………………………...Page 69 

 

10. City Manager & Other Department Reports  

Items for discussion by the City Manager and Department Heads as needed. 

 

11. Other Business 

 

  11.1   

    

12.    Mayor and Councilor - Committee Reports and Councilor Comments 

 

Rogue Valley Area Commission on Transportation – Mayor Stricker (alternate)  

Together for Talent Committee – Councilor Collins 

Metropolitan Planning Organization – Mayor Stricker & Councilor Cooke (alternate) 

Planning Commission – Councilor Wise & Councilor Abshire (alternate) 

Public Art Advisory Committee – Councilor McManus   

Parks Commission – Mayor Stricker  

Traffic Safety & Transportation Commission – Councilor Cooke  

Rogue Valley Council of Governments – Councilor McManus & Mayor Stricker (alternate)  

Talent Historical Society –Councilor Abshire  

Harvest Festival Committee – Councilor McManus  

Economic Development - Councilor Pederson & Council McManus 

Chamber – Councilor Pederson 

Talent Charter Review – Councilor Cooke 

  

13. Adjournment   

The City of Talent is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

Note: This agenda and the entire agenda packet, including staff reports, referenced documents, resolutions and 
ordinances are posted on the City of Talent website (www.cityoftalent.org) in advance of each meeting. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-2900 for English and for Spanish please contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-3896.   2

http://www.cityoftalent.org/


City of Talent 

PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, pollinator species such as thousands of species of bees are 
essential partners in producing much of our food supply; and 

 
WHEREAS, pollinator species provide significant environmental benefits that are 

necessary for maintaining healthy, biodiverse urban and suburban ecosystems; and 
 

WHEREAS, pollination plays a vital role for the trees and plants of our 
community, enhancing our quality of life, and creating recreational and economic 
development opportunities; and 

 
WHEREAS, for decades the City of Talent has managed urban landscapes and public 

lands that include many municipal parks and greenways, as well as wildlife habitats; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Talent provides recommendations to developers and 
residents regarding landscaping to promote wise conservation stewardship, including the 
protection of pollinators and maintenance of their habitats in urban and suburban 
environments; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Darby Stricker, Mayor of the City of Talent, do hereby 

proclaim June 20 to June 26 of 2016 as our municipality’s observance of 
 

National Pollinator Week 
 
And, the City of Talent as an affiliate of 

 

Bee City USA® 
 
and urge all citizens to recognize this observance. 

 
In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of City of Talent, to 
be affixed this  15th day of June, 2016 
 

 

Mayor Stricker 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



 
 

 

TALENT CITY COUNCIL 

        REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING DRAFT MINUTES 

TOWN HALL  

June 1, 2016 – 6:45 P.M. 

 

 

 

Study Session, Regular Council & TURA meetings are being digitally recorded and will be available on the City website  

 
The City Council of the City of Talent will meet in a Regular Council session at 6:45 P.M on Wednesday, June 1st in the Town Hall, 206 E. Main 

Street.  The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to the City Recorder at 541-535-1566, 
ext. 1012. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any other business deemed 

necessary at the time of the study session and/or meeting.  

   

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING- 6:45 PM 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms 
are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the “Citizens 

Heard on Non-Agenda Items” section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is 

discussed by the City Council. 

 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

 

3. Community Announcements 

 Garden Resource Fair Friday at 5:30 PM 

 June 4th Grand re-opening of the Splash Pad at Chuck Roberts Park at 12:00 PM. 

 June 4th Tree Planting Dedication Elizabeth at Chuck Roberts Park at 12:00 PM. 

 June 5th Grape Fair 12-6 PM at Talent Avenue. 

 Maker City presentation is coming soon.  

 June 15th Pollinator Proclamation will be presented at the Council Meeting.  

 June 25th 1-3 PM Pollinator Celebration at the Talent Commons Park by the Library.  

    

4.             Public Hearings  

Public hearings are conducted under a prescribed procedure depending on the topic. The presiding officer will conduct the hearing in 

accordance with those procedures which will allow for public input at the announced time. 

 

4.1 Talent Zoning Code related to trees and landscaping 

 

Community Development Director, Zac Moody gave a staff report.  
 

Opened Public Hearing at 7:18 PM 

 
Public Input: None. 

 

Closed Public Hearing at 7:18 PM 
 

Councilor Wise moved to approve Ordinance 16-918-O, an Ordinance amending Ordinance 458, Talent Zoning Code, adding title 8, 

chapter 3, division J, article 10, public trees, amending title 8, chapter 3 division J, article 3, fences and hedges to address tree preservation 

and protection, amending title 8, chapter 3, division J, article 4, trees and landscaping to address landscaping, fencing and hedges, and 

amending title 8, chapter 3, division C,D, F, G, J and L addressing changes to cross –references related to the aforementioned amendments. 

Councilor Collins seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  Discussion:  Mayor Stricker spoke that she is glad to see the amendments 

in this Ordinance.   All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 

5.            Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items  

Limited to 5 minutes or less per Mayoral discretion 

 
Dolly Warden –255 Colver Rd. #88 Talent - Ms. Warden spoke regarding issues at the Pollinator Garden.  

 

Phillip Yates- Mr. Yates discussed the Food Pantry and space issues. He spoke that they would like to use the basement at Town Hall.  In order to 
do so they would need an ADA compliant ramp.  

 

Councilor Pederson moved to waive the Council Rule and discuss this issue now. Councilor Collins seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated 

the motion. Discussion:  None. All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 

Councilor Pederson questioned what the ADA ramp would cost.   Mr. Corrigan spoke that the City has not looked into this yet.   
 

10



Councilor Pederson questioned if this space would allow for growth or just cover immediate needs.  Mr. Yates answered it would cover 

immediate needs.  
 

Councilor Pederson spoke that he would like to discuss on future agenda item. 

 
Council gave unanimous support to look into this further.    

 

 

6. Public Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential future action items. Time limited to 15 minutes 

per presentation unless prior arrangements have been made. 
 

6.1  None  

 

7. Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the 

consent agenda removed and considered separately on request.  

 

7.1 Approval of Regular Council Meeting Minutes for May 18, 2016 

 

Councilor Collins moved to approve the Regular Council Minutes for May 18th, 2016.  Councilor Pederson seconded. Mayor Stricker 

repeated the motion.  Discussion:  None.  All Ayes. Motion passed unanimously.    

 

8. Regular Agenda 

 

Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given their report and if there is an applicant, after 

they have had the opportunity to speak. Action items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 

 

 

8.1 Grape Fair Noise Permit 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a staff report.   

 

Councilor Wise moved to approve the noise permit for the Grape Fair.  Councilor McManus seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the 

motion.  Discussion:  None.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 

 

8.2 Liquor License Portal Brewing 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a staff report.  
 

Councilor Pederson moved to recommend approval of the liquor license for Portal Brewing.  Councilor Wise seconded.  Mayor Stricker 

repeated the motion.  Discussion:  None.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 

8.3 Adopt Resolution 16-939-R, a Resolution accepting the transfer of certain fixed assets from the Talent 

Urban Renewal Agency to the City of Talent (Town Hall Alley Project). 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a staff report.  

 

Councilor Wise moved to adopt Resolution 16-939-R, a Resolution accepting the transfer of certain fixed assets from the Talent Urban 

Renewal Agency to the City of Talent (Town Hall Alley Project). Councilor Pederson seconded. Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  

Discussion:  None.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.  

 

8.4 Charter Franchise Extension 

 

Due to no information from the attorneys the item was tabled to a future agenda.  

  

                   

9.   Information Items 

      

9.1 Phase 2 Ordinance Prioritization: 

 Ordinance 15-885-O, an Ordinance controlling vehicular and pedestrian traffic and providing 

penalties.  

 Ordinance 15-887-O, an Ordinance prescribing general offenses – 

providing penalties 

 Ordinance 15-888-O, an Ordinance for the disposition and impounding  

of discarded vehicles  

 Ordinance 15-893-O, an Ordinance requiring all buildings within the limits of the City of Talent, 

Oregon, to connect with the public sewer lines 

 Ordinance 15-894-O, an Ordinance establishing rules and regulations for the installation of 

water meters in mobile home parks; providing a penalty for violation thereof.  

 Ordinance 14-873A-O, an Ordinance prohibiting the uncontrolled growth of noxious vegetation 

causing fire hazards and other public nuisance – providing for abatement thereof and 

assessment of the cost thereof-prescribing penalties for failure to comply  

 

Mr. Corrigan explained that these are the Ordinances that Council wanted to bring back to amend and asked Council to prioritize them in order of 

importance.  Councilor Pederson asked if there were any that are urgent.  Mr. Corrigan explained that Ordinance 14-873A-O was a high priority.  

 
Council prioritized the Ordinances as follows: 

1. Ordinance 14-873A-O, an Ordinance prohibiting the uncontrolled growth of noxious vegetation causing fire hazards and other 

public nuisance – providing for abatement thereof and assessment of the cost thereof-prescribing penalties for failure to comply  11



2. Ordinance 15-885-O, an Ordinance controlling vehicular and pedestrian traffic and providing penalties.  

3. Ordinance 15-887-O, an Ordinance prescribing general offenses providing penalties 

   

The other 3 Ordinances were a lower priority. Staff will begin to work on the prioritized Ordinances and bring back to Council.  

  

 

10. City Manager & Other Department Reports  

Items for discussion by the City Manager and Department Heads as needed. 
Mr. Corrigan gave Department and City reports: 

 Talent Artisans Growers (TAG) Friday Market will begin this Friday.  

 Had RARE student interviews with the funding agency.  

 Completed and sent the Blue Sky Grant for solar panels at Community Center. We won’t know anything until September.  

 There was a water outage on Gangnes Drive today. 

 Friday is the start of fire season 

 Working on the marijuana taxation Ordinance.  

 The SCADA System is being worked on.  

 Jackson County did a type 1 review of the Flood Plain permit for Mountain View Paving.     

 A 40x60 sign was put up for the Front Street project (see attached).   

 The Splash pad soft opening last weekend went well.  
 

11. Other Business 

 

  11.1  

Mayor Stricker spoke regarding the City Mangers Review.  It will be in Executive Session on July 6th.  

 

Councilor Pederson spoke that he would like information on the investigation at the Pollinator Garden.  Mr. Corrigan spoke that he would talk to 

the Police Department about it.  

It was recommended for Councilor Collins to have Bee City send an email to Mr. Corrigan when incidents happen.  Mayor Stricker spoke that 
there is an upcoming discussion throughout the County to connect a Pollinator Garden on an I5 pathway.  

 

Mayor Stricker spoke regarding accounting transparency.  She questioned if Council could get a report of the new software.  Mr. Corrigan 
answered yes, once it is fully installed.  

  

    

12.    Mayor and Councilor - Committee Reports and Councilor Comments 

 

Rogue Valley Area Commission on Transportation – Mayor Stricker (alternate)  
Together for Talent Committee – Councilor Collins 

Metropolitan Planning Organization – Mayor Stricker & Councilor Cooke (alternate) 

Planning Commission – Councilor Wise & Councilor Abshire (alternate) 
Public Art Advisory Committee – Councilor McManus   

Parks Commission – Mayor Stricker  

Traffic Safety & Transportation Commission – Councilor Cooke  
Rogue Valley Council of Governments – Councilor McManus & Mayor Stricker (alternate)  

Talent Historical Society –Councilor Abshire  

Harvest Festival Committee – Councilor McManus  
Economic Development - Councilor Pederson & Council McManus 

Chamber – Councilor Pederson 

Talent Charter Review – Councilor Cooke 
  

Councilor McManus announced: 

 Central Point will be installing a new splash pad.  

 Ashland is working on a no smoking Ordinance in the downtown.  

 TPAC had a meeting discussing how to rejuvenate their Committee.   

 Harvest Festival Committee meets next Thursday. 
 

Councilor Pederson announced: 

 Chamber Meeting focused on the Grape Fair and want to work with the City on beautification of Talents public and private land. Also, 
they suggested doing a volunteer painting of the green building on Talent Avenue.  

 TURA – The work at the Animal Hospital is almost done.  
 

Councilor Wise announced that he was unable to attend the Planning Commission Study Session.  Mr. Moody spoke that they discussed process 

for mobile food cart permits.  

 

Mayor Stricker announced that the Parks Commission meets next week and the MPO meeting was cancelled.  
 

Councilor Collins and Councilor Abshire had no announcements.  

 
 

13. Adjournment   

 

The Council Meeting was adjourned at 8:29 PM 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

 

_____________________________________________________ 

City Recorder, Melissa Huhtala 

 12



 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________________________ 

City Manager, Tom Corrigan 

The City of Talent is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

Note: This agenda and the entire agenda packet, including staff reports, referenced documents, resolutions and 
ordinances are posted on the City of Talent website (www.cityoftalent.org) in advance of each meeting. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-2900 for English and for Spanish please contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-3896.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 13

http://www.cityoftalent.org/


 

14



15



16



17



18



19



 BUDGET REQUESTS FY2016-2017          TOGETHER FOR TALENT COMMITTEE 

 

Honey Tasting   September 3, 2016 
Sharon Schmidt of the Oregon Honey Festival will give a preview as she conducts a honey tasting at the Talent 

Public Library on September 6th.  The public is invited. 

Refreshments:     $65 

Publicity:              $65 

Justification:  This activity will give residents the chance to sample (taste) local honey and to learn about the 

different types of honey based upon the different types of nectar the bees manage to find in their foraging.  It will 

promote human's respect for this tiny pollinator that is so essential to our food 

supply.  We will be educating people as part of our commitment to being a Bee City USA. 

 

Harvest Festival 2016 – Children's Activities  October 1, 2016 
As in the past three years, we will have craft activities for children on pollinators.  Our table will have 

informational materials for adults to learn about pollinators and their needs.   

Craft Materials:   $120 

Info Materials:       $65 

Pollinator Flower Seeds   $200               

Justification:  Children and their parents need to know the role that pollinators play in our food supply.  They 

also need to know how to aid pollinators especially by providing gardens and water for our little foragers as well 

as eliminating the use of synthetic pesticides.  Bee City USA-Talent will be meeting its obligations in our 

resolution by providing these special activities for children and their parents. 

 

Forum on Pollinator Gardens and Corridors   March 2017 
Pollinators need plants that flower throughout the season so that there is always something in bloom for their 

pollen and nectar needs.  This forum will focus on how to establish a pollinator garden in one's yard and how to 

link with neighbor's gardens to have corridors of flowering plants available the entire growing season. 

Refreshments:   $65 

Info Materials:  $65 

Publicity:            $65 

Justification:  This forum will fulfill the purpose of education about pollinators that our Bee City USA 

designation requires. 

 

National Pollinator Week Celebration     June 23, 2017 
This celebration will have several interactive activities for children and will be in collaboration (as much as 

possible) with the Ashland Bee City USA, the Phoenix Bee City USA and any additional cities that received the 

designation by June of 2017. 

Amount Requested:  $200 

Info Materials:           $130 

Publicity:                      $ 65 

Justification:   As a Bee City USA, the City of Talent is required to celebrate National Pollinator Week 

starting with the Mayor's Declaration.  We expect to have a library display about pollinators and informational 

activities during the week.  We will promote visits to pollinator friendly gardens and yards in Talent and give 

plaques for display to participants in our pollinator gardens registry. 

 

Total Requested:     $1,105 

 

“No bees,  no food.  It's as simple as that” 

 

 

 

 

 

20



TOGETHER FOR TALENT BUDGET REQUESTS 

 (Friends of Trees, and Waste Reduction only) 

 

FRIENDS OF TREES SUBCOMMITTEE 

ARBOR DAY CELEBRATION 

Funds are needed to cover the costs of various aspects of the annual community celebration that includes a tree 

planting, music, children's activities, refreshments, wildlife display, and distribution of trees to the community 

from the nursery. A month long library display related to trees is also created. 

. 

Request: $500 

 

Justification:  The annual Arbor Day celebration is Talent’s annual community event where the city receives it's 

Tree City USA award and at least one tree is planted in honor of the event. This request is to cover the costs of 

the flyers, tree(s), wildlife display, and refreshments. 

       

 

COMMUNITY TREE NURSERY 

The nursery located near Public Works was started at the end of 2012 entirely with donations of goods, labor, 

and donated and transplanted tree seedlings. The nursery’s goal is to promote trees in Talent by growing and 

giving away trees to the community and for public areas as needed. 

 

Request: $100 

 

Justification:  We currently have a sign at the nursery itself but need additional signage to direct visitors to the 

nursery. (Public Works has agreed to build and install, request is for materials only) 

 

 

        Total for Friends of Trees: $600 

WASTE REDUCTION SUBCOMMITTEE 

The city has supported initial steps to reduce the amount of waste that is generated particularly at the Harvest 

Festival and an annual recycling drop off of various household materials. In 2017, four organizations including 

the city's Recycling Drop Off want to expand their joint marketing of the Community wide sale and Recycling 

Day 

Request: 

• $300 for promotion for the Recycling Drop Off 

• $150 for the city's share to promote the Community wide event including the purchase of a street banner 

• $50 for refreshments for volunteers for the event 

 

Justification: 

 A recycling drop off held in May offers the community an opportunity to dispose of types of waste that are 

either classified as hazardous waste or of material that doesn't break down in the landfill. Ads, flyers and signage 

are needed to publicize and direct participants is needed as well as refreshments for the many volunteers for the 

event. 

Combining marketing efforts with other organizations helps everyone involved and promotes the community. 

 

       Total for Waste Reduction: $500 

 

BUDGET REQUESTS  FY2016-2017         TOGETHER FOR TALENT COMMITTEE 

21



 

Clean Energy Team Sub Committee of Together for Talent 

  

Community Meetings Re: Clean Energy Action Plan  

Rogue Climate Talent and the Clean Energy Team of T4T will be holding two large community meetings to 

gather input regarding the clean energy action plan.  

Refreshments and Snacks:     $200 

Publicity:                $100 

Justification:  This activity will give residents the opportunity to learn about the clean energy plan, and provide 

ideas and input before the plan is presented to the full Together for Talent committee.  

             Total - $300 

Regional Rural Community Energy Planning Meet Up  –October , 2016 

As a follow up to the Making Energy Work workshop, Lake County Resource Initiative and Energy Trust of 

Oregon will be holding a training for community leaders on renewable energy planning so that community 

leadership can share successes and challenges.  

Travel Costs: $100  

Justification: This will be an important opportunity to learn from other communities that are actively working to 

develop clean energy plans, and an opportunities for Talent Leaders to see in person what Lake County it doing.   

 

 

Together for Talent Forums 

4 Forums in the next 12 months not otherwise listed for disaster preparedness and recover.  At approximately 

$50 per forum. 

 

Total - $200.    

 

Together for Talent: Community Outreach Budget 2015/2016 

Justification 

The Together for Talent Committee works on project to benefit all the residents of the city with various events 

and activities throughout the year from the Harvest Festival to the Arbor Day events and including Green Up and 

Clean Up, weeding parties, tree nursery maintenance, trail building and maintenance to name a few.  On these 

occasions it is useful and sometimes necessary from reach out to the community for volunteers, put out display 

signage to direct people to events, or to alert pedestrians and motorists to activities. 

Specific Request 

Rather than inefficiently purchasing art supplies and signage for individual events in limited quantities on a one 

by one bases, the Committee would like to purchase art supplies at the beginning of the year in bulk to take 

advantage of lower unit pricing. 

Total for Community Outreach:        Total - $200 

 

TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST FOR TOGETHER FOR TALENT:           $3,005            

22



             

             

             

             

             

             

              

June 7th, 2016 

Talent Historical Society 

Talent City Council 

City of Talent 

REF:  Budget Request for FY 2017 

The Talent Historical Society was founded in 1994 as a non-profit organization dedicated to 

collecting, researching, preserving and interpreting the history of the Talent area in Southern 

Oregon.  We offer a collection of historical archives to help local residents and visitors become 

better acquainted with our area’s rich history.  We operate Talent’s museum and meeting place 

located at 105 North Market St, Talent, Oregon.  The Society also publishes, on a quarterly 

basis, the official newsletter of the Talent Historical Society, The Historacle, which is available at 

the museum and sent out to our membership and sponsors.  We also present monthly Tuesday 

Evening at the Museum with lectures on various subjects, and the museum is open on Saturday 

and Sunday, 1PM-5PM. 

 The following projects and funding are our main source of income for the Talent Historical 

Society:  

We have received support from the City of Talent this past year in the amount of $1,000 

Annual Talent Tomato Plant Sale 

Annual Pancake Breakfast 

Merchandise sales at the museum 

Memberships and Business Sponsorships 

Donations 

We believe the above events and the Society enhance the City of Talent’s cultural goals and 

benefit our community as a whole.  Under the leadership of our President, Ron Medinger, and 

the Board of Directors, we have stabilized and are increasing our memberships and Business 

sponsorships.  We are in the process of increasing our cultural and heritage activities and 

obtaining more display cases.  We also wish to offer more educational opportunities to our 

Talent Historical Society       
  

  

P.O. Box 582,  Talent, OR   97540                  

                          (541) 512-8838        www.talenthistory.org 

23



local schools.  Our goal is to be a self-sufficient, non-profit organization serving the people of 

the Talent area and preserving our unique local history. 

With the cultural needs of the city in mind, the Talent Historical Society request short-term 

financial assistance from the City of Talent to support our mission in the community.   

Our request for assistance and intended use of funding is as follows: 

 

Rent subsidy for calendar year 2017    $1,000 

 

Due to the fact that we share the museum with the Talent Food Bank, which uses the museum 

building one day a week when the museum is not open and occasional weekends for drop off of 

food donations. The Food Bank also has two refrigerators/freezers running 24/7.  We request 

that our share of the utility bills be reduced from the current 88% to 75% of total utility cost 

charged to the city for the museum building located at 105 North Market St.  We feel this 

reduction will reflect more of a true cost for the Society and the cost of the Talent Food Bank to 

operate in this building. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

John Harrison 

Treasurer, Talent Historical Society Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
      
 

 
 

24



Funding Requests: 2016 / 2017 

1.  TURA / TPAC collaborative artwork project for West Valley View round-about   

        $2000 

 

a.  Funds will be used to research, advertise, inform and solicit RFPs of artwork 

from a variety of artists for review with TURA Board / Council / community 

b.  Review creative options & make recommendations to Council 

 

2.  Southern Oregon Grape Fair / 2017 (arts, music, eco-development support) 

  a.  Arts: 4th Annual Plein Air event at the Southern Oregon Grape Fair  

   (Talent signature event)   $1200 

  -  Advertising & banners 

  -  Documentation, promotion and placement of “best of show” artwork 

  -  Program upgrades and support incentives  

b.  Event support for arts, music, print, advertising, day-of-materials  

       $ 800 

 c.  Event photographer (documentation)      

       $ 500 

 

3.  2016 / 2017 Talent Arts & Musical Events / Public Arts Support Projects (small 

project support)     $1000 

 

a.  Harvest Festival, Friday Night Markets, Christmas Fair, Arts & Cultural      

Foundation, Makers City event 

  b.  Advertising, promotional print, signage for the arts 

  c.  Refreshments & music 

             

            Total Requests:  $5500 

 

Thank you for your consideration and look forward to another great year in the Arts. 

Ron Hodgdon / Chair 

Talent Public Arts Committee 

 

25



1 

 
 

June 8, 2016 
 
Talent Chamber Requests for Fiscal Year 1617 

 
Pancake Feed 
Expenses: 

$100 Signage  
$315 Advertising 
$160 Community Building Rental Fees 
 

Benefits to community: The Pancake Feed is a community tradition that brings our citizens together for an 
affordable meal and kicks off the Harvest celebration. These types of events bond current residents and attract 
new residents that are interested in a friendly small town lifestyle. 
 
Southern Oregon Grape Fair 
Expenses: 

$400 Signage 
$3500 Advertising 
$200 Street Closure equipment 
$290 City Fees and permits 
 

Benefits to community: This is a walking fair that includes 17+ wine, beer and spirit makers, and over 30 art, 
retail and craft and non profit vendors. There is a full stage featuring 5 energetic, popular bands with large 
followings.  The Southern Oregon Grape Fair brings 500+ people into the city of Talent.  The benefits for Talent 
and the Rogue Valley are centered around economic development. This event, now 3 years running, anchors 
Talent as a destination location in the valley’s growing wine industry. Having the event in the center of town 
provides exposure to our small businesses, theatre, galleries, restaurants and potential development properties. 
As this event continues to grow it will justify Talent as an vacation destination and attract economic development 
opportunities. This event is the main fundraiser for Talent Chamber and afford the organization the ability to 
support local business and represent Talent in the larger community of Southern Oregon.  

 
 
 
 

26



2 

 
 
Talent Chamber Requests for Fiscal Year 1617 

 
Holiday Gift Fair  
Expenses:  

$100 Signage 
$765 Advertising 
$160 Community Building Rental Fees 

 
Benefits to community: This is a gift fair that includes nearly 30 retail art and craft vendors, 3 to 4 local 
musicians, as well as several artisan food makers and wineries. The Holiday Gift Fair provides local makers and 
artists sales opportunities while encouraging buying locally made holiday gifts. This event fits perfectly with the 
goals and ideals that our community is focused on growing, as the Makers Space vision is developed and 
brought to life.  
 
 
The Talent Chamber Board is committed to partnering with the City of Talent and all who are invested in the 
health, vitality and economic growth of this community.  
To forward that goal the Talent Chamber Board respectfully requests a total of $5990 be allocated to the above 
expenses, in the city budget for the fiscal year of 20162017.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Talent Chamber of Commerce 
 

206 E. Main Street / P. O. Box 11 Talent, OR 975400011 541.535.3837 president@talentchamber.org 
 

Talent Chamber Mission: The Talent Chamber, supports members by promoting and advocating for a vibrant and 
sustainable business community. 

27

mailto:president@talentchamber.org


RESOLUTION NO. 16-942-R 
 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE CITY OF TALENT 
WATER RATES. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Medford Water Commission has approved a water rate increase 
effective January 1, 2016. In combination with 7 other water increases in the last 14 
years. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the water rates shall be 
adjusted as recommended to ensure that the City can meet the financial obligations for 
water infrastructure. 
 
 WHEREAS, March 1st the City will make annual step increase equal to the 
increase of the most recent Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) January-to-January, as 
determined by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.  
 
 The City of Talent resolves as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Water rates effective upon enactment of this Resolution are: 
 

(A)  MONTHLY CHARGE:   
(1)  Inside City Limits:  For each month or fraction thereof during 

which the City furnishes water services, the minimum monthly rate shall 
be charged as follows and shall include the first 3,000 gallons of water: 

  Meter Size (inches)    Minimum Billing Rate: 
   ¾ - 5/8     $16.14 
        1        35.64 
       1½         68.14 
        2      143.00 
        3                                                          247.00 
        4                                                          364.00 
         6      689.00 
  and, 

 $4.04 for each 1,000 gallons, or fraction thereof, for the next 3,000 
gallons, and 
 $4.44 for each 1,000 gallons, or fraction thereof, for the next 3,000 
gallons, and 
 $4.84 for each additional 1,000 gallons, or fraction thereof, for all 
additional gallons. 
  
(2) Deposit for Service:  A deposit of $75.00 shall be charged for each 
customer served by the Water Department.  In the event a customer’s 
service is disconnected due to delinquency, and/or the deposit is depleted 
when applied to the account, a new deposit shall be required prior to 
service being restored. 
(3) Outside City Limits:  For water service users outside of the City limits, 
the water rates and deposit amounts shall be charged as twice the amount 
of the inside city limits rate. 

28



 (4) Reconnection Fees:  In all instances where water has been 
turned off because of delinquency, a reconnection fee of $25.00 shall be 
made prior to service being restored. 
 (5) Connection Charge:  The basic water service connection charge 
is set as follows: 
      Pre-existing live 
   New construction main with an 
   with a dry main  asphalt road and/or 
   and no asphalt curb/gutter, or  
Meter Size  or curb/gutter         improved right-of-way 
¾ inch   $200.00   $600.00             $2,000.00 
1 inch   $300.00     700.00            2,150.00 
1½  inch  $1,000.00  2000.00            2,900.00 
2 inch   $1,250.00  2400.00            3,250.00 
All of these rates apply unless excessive digging is required.  Pipe over 40 
feet shall be charged extra.  For larger meters over 2”, the charge shall be 
determined by the City of Talent.  For any water meter installed to property 
located outside of the City limits, an additional charge of $150.00 shall be 
made. 

 
SECTION 2.  All prior Resolutions and Ordinances setting water rate schedules are 
repealed.    
 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effective upon its passage by the 
Council and its approval by the Mayor of the City of Talent, Oregon. 
 
Duly enacted by the City Council in open session on June 15, , 2016 by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:          NAYS:       ABSTAIN:    ABSENT:   
 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Melissa Huhtala, City Recorder and Custodian of City Records 

29



RESOLUTION NO. 16-943-R 
 

Effective Date: 06/15/2016 

 

A resolution extending workers’ compensation coverage to volunteers of City of Talent, in which 
City of Talent elects the following: 
 
Pursuant to ORS 656.031, workers’ compensation coverage will be provided to the classes of 
volunteers listed in this resolution, noted on CIS payroll schedule and verified at audit: 

1.  Public Safety Volunteers   

Applicable ___X___ Non-applicable ______ 

An assumed monthly wage of $800 will be used for public safety volunteers in the following 
volunteer positions (check all that apply): 

XPolice reserve 

 Search and rescue 
 Firefighter 
 Emergency medical personnel 
 Ambulance drivers 
 Other [List specifically by title] 

 
2. Volunteer boards, commissions and councils for the performance of administrative 

duties.   

Applicable __X____ Non-applicable ______ 

An aggregate assumed annual wage of $2,500 will be used per each volunteer board, 
commission or council for the performance of administrative duties.  The covered   bodies are 
(list each body): 

 a. City Council 

 b. Planning Commission 

 c. Parks Commission 

 d. Traffic Safety and Transportation Commission 

3.  Manual labor by elected officials.    

Applicable ______ Non-applicable ___x___ 

30



An assumed monthly wage of $800 per month will be used for public officials for the 
performance of non-administrative duties other than those covered in paragraph 2 above 

4. Non-public safety volunteers     

Applicable __X____ Non-applicable ______  

All non-public safety volunteers listed below will track their hours and Oregon minimum wage 
will serve as assumed wage for  both premium and benefits calculations.  CIS will assign the 
appropriate classification code according to the type of volunteer work being performed. (List 
specific non- public safety volunteers below) 

 Parks and recreation 
 Senior center  
 Public works 
 Library 

X Other – Clerical Volunteers 

 
5. Public Events                                 

 Applicable ______ Non-applicable __x____ 

Volunteers at the following public events will be covered under workers’ compensation 
coverage using verified hourly Oregon minimum wage as basis for premium and/or benefit 
calculation:   (List specific events) 

6. Community Service Volunteers/Inmates    

Applicable ______ Non-applicable __x____ 

Pursuant to ORS 656.041, workers’ compensation coverage will be provided to community 
service volunteers commuting their sentences by performing work authorized by the City of 
Talent.  

Oregon minimum wage tracked hourly will be used for both premium and benefit calculations, 
verifiable by providing a copy of the roster and/or sentencing agreement from the court.   

 

7. Other volunteers                                         

Volunteer exposures not addressed here will have workers’ compensation coverage if, prior 
to the onset of the work provided that City of Talent: 

a. Provides at least two weeks’ advance written notice to CIS underwriting requesting 
the coverage 

b. CIS approves the coverage and date of coverage 

31



c. CIS provides written confirmation of coverage 

City of Talent agrees to maintain verifiable rosters for all volunteers including 

volunteer name, date of service and hours of service and make them available at the 

time of a claim or audit to verify coverage. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City of Talent to provide workers’ compensation 
coverage as indicated above. 

Adopted by the Talent City Council on this 15th day of June 2016. 

 

 

Mayor Stricker 

Attest by ___________________________________this ____ day of ____________20_____ 

 

Melissa Huhtala, City Recorder and Custodian of City Records 

 

 

   

 

 

32



33



34



35



ORDINANCE NO.  16-918-O 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 458, TALENT ZONING CODE, ADDING 

TITLE 8, CHAPTER 3, DIVISION J, ARTICLE 10, PUBLIC TREES, AMENDING TITLE 8, 

CHAPTER 3 DIVISION J, ARTICLE 3, FENCES AND HEDGES TO ADDRESS TREE 

PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION, AMENDING TITLE 8, CHAPTER 3, DIVISION J, 

ARTICLE 4, TREES AND LANDSCAPING TO ADDRESS LANDSCAPING, FENCING AND 

HEDGES, AND AMENDING TITLE 8, CHAPTER 3, DIVISION C, D, F, G, J AND L 

ADDRESSING CHANGES TO CROSS-REFERENCES RELATED TO THE 

AFORMENTIONED AMENDMENTS.   

 

WHEREAS, after due consideration, the City of Talent has made certain findings in 

connection with the proposed amendments and have followed the statutory procedures.  

 

THE CITY OF TALENT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the following sections within Title 8, Chapter 3 have been added as 

described in EXHIBIT A attached herein: 

Division J, Article 10, Public Trees 

SECTION 2. That the following sections within Title 8, Chapter 3 have been amended as 

described in EXHIBIT A attached herein: 

Division J, Article 3, Fences and Hedges amended to address Tree Preservation and Protection and 

titled “Tree Preservation and Protection” 

Division J, Article 4, Trees and Landscaping amended to address Landscaping, Fences and Hedges 

and titled “Landscaping, Fences and Hedges” 

SECTION 3. That the following sections within Title 8, Chapter 3 have been amended as 

described in EXHIBIT A attached herein to address changes in section cross-references: 

Division C, Article 1, Section 180 and 190 

Division C, Article 2, Section 280 and 290 

Division C, Article 4, Section 482, 484 and 486 

Division D, Article 1, Section 195 and 196 

Division D, Article 2, Section 295 and 296 

Division D, Article 3, Section 395 and 396 

Division D, Article 4, Section 495 and 496 

Division D, Article 5, Section 595 and 596 

Division F, Article 1, Section 190 

Division G, Article 1, Section 180 

Division J, Article 1, Section 121 

Division L, Article 8, Section 850 

36



 

SECTION 4.  That the amendments as described herein comply with all applicable 

Comprehensive Plan Policies of the City of Talent as well as all applicable State and Federal 

Laws. 

SECTION 5.  That the amendments as described herein have been advertised and 

publically noticed in accordance with Section 8-3M. Article 1 of the Talent Zoning Ordinance. 

Duly enacted by the City Council in open session on June 15, 2016 by the following vote:   

Ayes:    Nays:    Abstain:    Absent:    

 

       

Melissa Huhtala, City Recorder and Custodian of City records 

37



38



ORDINANCE NO. 16-919-O 
 

AN  ORDINANCE FOR THE DISPOSITION AND IMPOUNDING OF DISCARDED 
VEHICLES AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO.16-888-O 

 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF TALENT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 
 

Section 1.    Definitions. 
 
As used in this ordinance, unless the context requires otherwise: 

 
Costs: shall mean the expense of removing, storing or selling a junked 

vehicle. 

Chief of Police:        includes any authorized law enforcement officer of the City. 

Discarded Vehicle:  shall mean any vehicle which does not have lawfully affixed thereto 
a valid license plate, current registration, or is in one or more of the 
following conditions: 

 
(a)      Inoperative 

 
(b)      Wrecked 

 
(c)      Dismantled 

 
(d)      Partially Dismantled 

 
(e)      Abandoned 

 
(f)       Junked 

 
Discarded vehicles may be deemed to include major parts thereof, 
including but not limited to bodies, engines, transmissions or rear 
ends. 

 
Vehicle Owner:shall mean  any  individual,  firm,  corporation  or  unincorporated 
association with a claim, either individually or jointly, of ownership or any interest, legal or 
equitable, in a vehicle. 

 
Person in Charge of Property: shall mean  any  agent,  occupant,  lessee,  contract 
purchaser, owner or person having possession, control or title of property where a vehicle 
is located. 

39



is or may be transported or drawn upon a public street or highway, 
except devices moved by human power or used exclusively upon 
stationary rails or tracks. 

 
Structure:                As defined in 8-3B.1 of the Zoning Code 

 
Section 2.    Declaration of Public Nuisance 

 
The open accumulation and storage of a discarded vehicle is hereby found to create a 
condition tending to reduce the value of private property, to promote blight, deterioration 
and unsightliness, to invite plundering, to create fire hazards, to constitute an attractive 
nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, to create a harborage for 
rodents and insects and to be injurious to the health, safety, and general welfare. 
Therefore, the presence of a discarded vehicle on private or public property is hereby 
declared to constitute a public nuisance, which may be abated in accordance with the 
provisions of this ordinance. 

 
Section 3.    Prohibited Action 

 
A) Storage of a discarded vehicle upon any private property within the City of 
Talent is prohibited unless: 

 
1)   The vehicle is completely enclosed within a roofed structure or building 
that meets the setback requirements for its zoning district and the vehicle is 
not visible from the public right-or-way, or 

 
2)   It is in connection with a licensed business enterprise dealing in junked 
vehicles lawfully permitted by the Department of Motor Vehicles and 
conducted within the city. 

 

 
 

Section 4.    Investigation - Contents of Notice 
 

A) It shall be the duty of the Chief of Police, whenever a discarded vehicle is found 
upon private property, to: 

 
1) Make an investigation to discover the owner of the vehicle and the 
person in charge of the property upon which such vehicle is located, and 
give written notice to them by personal service or by registered or certified 
mail that the vehicle is in violation of this ordinance; and 

 
2) If the owner of the vehicle is not found, to place a notice upon the 
subject property, windshield of the vehicle, or some other part of the vehicle 
where it can be easily seen. 

40



ordinance, and that within seven (7) days of the day of the sending or posting of 
the notice: 

 
1) The vehicle must be removed from the city or to the storage yard of a 
licensed business enterprise dealing in junked vehicles, or 

 
2) The vehicle must be completely enclosed within a structure or building. 
Fences are not acceptable. 

 
C) The notice shall also state that the alterative to compliance with subsection (2) 
of this section is to petition the City Manager and request appearance in writing 
before the City Council within seven (7) days of sending or posting of the notice 
and show cause why such vehicle should not be immediately abated, as provided 
in this ordinance. 

 
D) The notice shall also state that failure to comply with this ordinance authorizes 
the City to remove the vehicle and charge the cost against the property from which 
it was removed, and to sell the vehicle to satisfy the costs of removal and storage. 

 
Section 5. Entry upon Private Property 

 
A) The Chief of Police, or designee, is authorized at all reasonable times to enter 
upon private property and examine any vehicle for the purpose of determining 
whether or not it is in a discarded condition. However, before entering upon private 
property, the designated officer shall obtain the consent of an occupant thereof or 
a warrant of the municipal court authorizing his entry for the purpose of inspection, 
except when an emergency exists. 

 
B) No search warrant shall be issued under the terms of this ordinance until an 
affidavit has been filed with the municipal court, showing probable cause for such 
inspection by stating the purpose and extent of the proposed inspection, citing this 
ordinance was the basis for such inspection, whether it is an inspection instituted 
by complaint or other specific or general information concerning the vehicle in 
question or the property on which it is situated. 

 
C) It is unlawful for any person to interfere with or attempt to prevent the Chief of 
Police, or designee, from entering upon private premises and inspecting any 
vehicle when an emergency exists or the Chief exhibits a warrant authorizing entry. 

41

mhuhtala
Line

mhuhtala
Line



Section 6.    Hearing by City Council 
 
Pursuant to a request, the City Council shall fix a time for a hearing to show cause why a 
vehicle should not be immediately abated. It shall receive the evidence and testimony of 
the Chief of Police and other interested person concerning the existence, location, and 
condition of the vehicle.  After the hearing, the Council may authorize and order the 
vehicle removed by the City in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance.  The 
Council shall make its order in the form of a resolution, which declares the vehicle to be 
a public nuisance.  The resolution may order the removal of more than one (1) vehicle, 
and may consolidate the hearings, and orders relating to more than one vehicle.  The 
persons receiving the notice specified in Section 4 shall be sent copies of the resolution 
of the Council. In addition, the Council may impose conditions and take such other action 
as it deems appropriate under the circumstances in order to carry out the purposes of this 
ordinance.  It may delay the time for removal of said vehicle where, in its opinion, the 
circumstances justify it.  It shall refuse to order the removal of the vehicle where the 
vehicle, in the opinion of the Council, is not subject to the provisions of this ordinance. 
The Council shall not be bound by the technical rules of evidence in the conduct of the 
hearing. 

 
Section 7.    Abatement by City and Appraisal 

 
A) Seven (7) days after the giving of notice required in Section 4, or seven (7) 
days after adoption of a resolution declaring a vehicle to be a public nuisance, as 
set forth in Section 6, the City shall be deemed to have acquired jurisdiction to 
abate the nuisance and may remove the vehicle by use of City employees or duly 
authorized independent contractors. It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere 
with, hinder or refuse to allow such persons to enter upon private property for the 
purpose of removing a vehicle under the provisions of this ordinance. 

 
B) City staff shall, in performing the appraisal, use available published data and 
reference material as it deems relevant and appropriate. 

 
Section 8.    Low Value Vehicle 

 
A) If the vehicle is appraised at $750.00 or less, the Chief of Police shall file with 
the Motor Vehicle Division an affidavit describing the vehicle, including the license 
plates, if any, stating the location and appraised value of the vehicle, and stating 
that the vehicle will be junked or dismantled.  The Chief of Police may, without 
notice and public auction, dispose of the vehicle and execute a certificate for sale. 

 
B) The certificate of sale shall be on a form approved by the City Manager. 

42



Section 9. Public Sale Notice 
 

A) If the vehicle is appraised over $750.00, the Chief of Police shall cause to be 
published in a newspaper of general circulation within the city a notice of sale. The 
notice of sale shall state: 

 
1)   The sale is of discarded property in possession of the city. 

 
2)   A description of the vehicle, including the type, make, license number, 
I.D. number, and any other information, which will aid in accurately 
identifying the vehicle. 

 
3)   The terms of the sale. 

 
4)   The date, time, and place of the sale. 

 
B) The notice of sale shall be published two (2) times.  The first publication shall 
be made not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of the proposed sale, and the 
second shall be made not less than three (3) days prior to the date of the proposed 
sale. 

 
Section 10.  Public Sale 

 
A) If a vehicle is subject to Section 9, the Chief of Police shall hold a sale at the 
time and place appointed within the view of the vehicle to be sold. 

 
B) The vehicle shall be sold to the highest and best bidder; providing that if no 
bids are entered, or those bids which are entered are less than the costs incurred 
by the city, the Chief of Police may enter a bid on behalf of the city in an amount 
equal to such costs. 

 
C) At the time of payment of the purchase price, the Chief of Police shall execute 
a certificate of sale, in duplicate, the original of which shall be delivered to the 
purchaser and the copy thereof filed with the City Manager of the city. 

 
D) The certificate of sale shall be on a form provided by the City Manager. 

 
Section 11.  Redemption Before Sale 

 
A) A vehicle impounded under the provisions of this ordinance may be redeemed 
by its owner or by the person in charge of the property from which the vehicle is 
removed before a sale or disposition has taken place by applying to the Chief of 
Police.  The person shall: 

 
1)   Submit evidence of his ownership or interest in the vehicle to the Chief 
of Police. 

43



2)   Pay the costs due and owing at the time the application to redeem is 
made. 

 
3)  Give evidence that the nuisance character of the vehicle will not be 
allowed to be resumed. 

 
B) Upon compliance with subsection (1) of this section, the Chief of Police shall 
execute a receipt and cause the vehicle to be returned. 

 
Section 12.  Assessment of Costs 

 
A) After disposing of the discarded vehicle and deducting any money received 
from any sale of the vehicle from the costs, the City Manager shall give notice by 
personal service or by registered or certified mail to the person in charge of the 
property from which the vehicle was removed: 

 
1)   Of the unpaid costs of abatement. 

 
2)  That the costs as indicated will be assessed to and become a lien 
against the real property unless paid within thirty (30) days from the date of 
the notice. 

 
3)   That if the person in charge of the property objects to the cost of the 
abatement indicated, a written notice of objection may be filed with the City 
Manager within twenty (20) days from the date of the notice. 

 
B) Within forty (40) days after the date of the notice of objection, objection to the 
proposed assessments shall be heard and determined by the Council. 

 
C) If the costs of the abatement are not paid within thirty (30) days from the date 
of the notice, or within ten (10) days of a council determination made under 
subsection 2) of this section, assessment of the costs shall be made by resolution 
of the City Council and shall be entered in the docket of city liens, and upon such 
entry being made shall constitute a lien upon the real property from which the 
nuisance was removed or abated. 

 
D) The lien shall be enforced in the same manner a liens for street improvements 
are enforced and shall bear interest at the rate of six percent (6%) per annum. 
Such interest shall accrue from the date of the entry of the lien in the lien docket. 

 
E) An error in the name of the person in charge of the property shall not void the 
assessment, nor will a failure to receive the notice of the proposed assessment 
render the assessment void. The assessment shall remain a valid lien against the 
property. 

44



Section 13.  Effective Date 
 
Under the provisions of the Charter of the City of Talent, Chapter VIII, Section 33, this 
Ordinance shall take effect on the thirtieth day after its enactment. 

 

 
 

Duly enacted by the City Council in open session on    by 
the following vote: 

 
Ayes: 0 Nays: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent: 0 

 
 
 
 
Melissa Huhtala, City Recorder and Custodian of City records 

45



46



ORDINANCE NO.  16-920-O 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE 

INSTALLATION OF WATER METERS IN MOBILE HOME PARKS; AND MULTI-
FAMILY DWELLINGS PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR VIOLATION THEREOF.AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 15-894-O. 

 
THE CITY OF TALENT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. A Master Meter shall be installed as the controlling meter, this installation 
will include a lockable curb stop before the inlet side of this meter.  
 
Section 2. Effective June 15, 2016, no mobile home park and multi-family dwelling 
shall be permitted to install individual meters. 

 
Section 3. Definition Multiple-Family Dwelling:  A building or portion thereof, designed 
or used as a residence by three or more families or individual households, and containing 
three or more dwelling units.  As defined by section 8-3B120 of the Talent Zoning Code.  

 
Section 4. Any violation of any term of this Ordinance is an infraction and it should be 
punished as set forth in the laws of the City of Talent.  
 
Section 5. It is hereby adjudged and declared that the existing conditions are such that 
this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health and safety 
of the people of the City of Talent, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this 
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage by the 
Council and approval by the Mayor.  
 
 
Duly enacted by the City Council in open session on ________________________ by 
the following vote: 
  

Ayes:      0 Nays: 0   Abstain:  0  Absent:   0 

 

       
Melissa Huhtala, City Recorder and Custodian of City records 

 

47



48



49



 

 

 
June 6, 2016 
 
Dear Chief Administrative Official: 
 
For the past three months, eight policy committees have been working to identify and propose specific 
actions as part of the League’s effort to develop a pro-active legislative agenda for the 2017 session.  
They have identified 29 legislative objectives as set forth in the enclosed ballot and legislative 
recommendation materials.  These objectives span a variety of issues and differ in the potential 
resources required to seek their achievement.  Therefore, it is desirable to prioritize them in order to 
ensure that efforts are focused where they are most needed. 
 
Each city is being asked to review the recommendations of the policy committees and provide input to 
the LOC Board of Directors as it prepares to adopt the League’s 2017 legislative agenda.  After your city 
council has had the opportunity to review the 29 proposals and discuss them with your staff, please 
return the enclosed ballot indicating the top four issues that your city council would like to see the 
League focus on in the 2017 session.  The deadline for response is July 22, 2016.  The board of directors 
will then review the results of this survey of member cities, along with the recommendations of the 
policy committees, and determine the League’s 2017 legislative agenda. 
 
Your city’s participation and input will assist the board in creating a focused set of specific legislative 
targets that reflect the issues of greatest importance to cities.  Thank you for your involvement, and 
thanks to those among you who gave many hours of time and expertise in developing these proposals. 
 
Do not hesitate to contact me or Craig Honeyman, Legislative Director, with questions. 
Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Michael J. McCauley 

Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



INSTRUCTIONS 
 

1. Each city should submit one form that reflects the consensus 
opinion of its city council on the top four legislative priorities for 
2017. 

 
2. Simply place an X in the space to the left of the city’s top four 

legislative proposals (last pages of the packet). 
 

3. The top four do not need to be prioritized. 
 

4. Return by July 22nd via mail, fax or e-mail to: 
 
Paul Aljets 
League of Oregon Cities 
1201 Court St. NE, Suite 200  
Salem, OR  97301 
Fax – (503) 399-4863 
paljets@orcities.org  

 
Thank you for your participation. 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

51

mailto:paljets@orcities.org


 
City of: _________________________________    Please mark 4 boxes with an X that   

    reflect the top 4 issues that your city   
    recommends be the priorities for the   
    League’s 2017 legislative agenda. 

 
Legislation 

 

Community Development  

     A. Needed Housing Assistance Program  

     B. Natural Hazard Land Use Reform  

     C. DOGAMI Disaster Mapping  

     D. Floodplain Technical Assistance  

Energy  

     E. Green Energy Technology Requirement  

     F. Funding Public Energy Projects  

     G. Updates to Oregon Energy Code  

Finance and Taxation  

     H. Property Tax Reform - Market Value / Local Control  

     I. Property Tax Reform - Fairness and Equity  

     J. Local Lodging Tax  

     K. Nonprofit Property Tax Exemption  

     L. Marijuana and Vaping Taxes  

General Government  

     M. Restore Recreational Immunity  

     N. Increase Local Liquor Fees  

     O. Marijuana Legalization Implementation  

     P. Mental Health Investments  

     Q. Qualification Based Selection  

Human Resources  

     R. Subsidy for Retiree Health Insurance Repeal  

     S. PERS Reform  

     T. Arbitration Reform  

     U. Veterans Preference Clarifications  

Telecommunications  

     V. Rights of Way  

     W. Franchise Fees  

     X. 9-1-1 Emergency Communications  

     Y. Technology Funding  

Transportation  

     Z. Transportation Funding and Policy Package  

Water/Wastewater  

     AA. Funding Water System Resilience  

     BB. Enhanced Prescription Drug Take-Back  

     CC. Water Supply Development Fund  

52



 

 

Community Development 
Legislation Background 
A. Needed Housing Assistance Program 
 
Create state grants and technical assistance to cities 
working to develop housing development programs 
directed at new or innovative mans of providing 
housing solutions for low-income or senior 
populations. 

 

Cities are looking for new ways to serve the needs of a variety 
of people needing housing options and putting more 
resources toward housing projects.  However, there is a need 
for state resources and assistance in implementing these 
programs.  Funds that cities could access could be used to 
assist in land purchases for leasing for long-term low income 
housing, incentives for creating single story housing for 
seniors, tiny housing development, and planned 
developments that serve a range of incomes.  Technical 
assistance to other cities should help a city determine what 
programs or planning options are available tools to help cities 
reach the goals set in the comprehensive plan.  
 

B.  Natural Hazard Land Use Reform 
 
Create process for communities to move the UGB 
from an identified hazard area to resource lands and 
planning for replacing significant urban areas lost after 
a natural disaster. 

 

As science has better located some hazards areas and as 
regulations impact the expected development of other areas, 
cities need to find ways to respond more efficiently to 
address long-term planning for development.  This requires a 
simplification of the process for changing the location of 
development, including adding new areas to the UGB, to 
account for lost development capacity.  There also needs to 
be a streamlined process for a city to identify areas of new 
development should a disaster remove a large portion of the 
buildable land supply if a disaster should strike. 
 

C. DOGAMI Disaster Mapping 
 
Increase funding for DOGAMI to complete 
comprehensive disaster mapping of cities, including 
landslide and floodplain risk identification, and 
natural hazard related evacuation planning for 
additional potential risks such as tsunami or wildfire 
inundation. 

The Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries 
(DOGAMI) provides a number of technical resources to cities 
to identify hazards that could impact development.  The 
department is also an integral partner in creating plans for 
the emergency response for many disasters that could occur 
in the state.  Increasing funds for comprehensive maps will 
help with long-term planning for hazard mitigation, resilience, 
and survival.   
 

D. Floodplain Technical Assistance 
 
Provide DLCD funding for technical assistance to cities 
implementing required changes to floodplain 
development management practices from FEMA. 

 

Because of the recent release of the Biological Opinion from 
the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
Fisheries Service related to the National Flood Insurance 
Program’s potential to impact endangered species, there is a 
need for cities to receive significant assistance in 
implementing any changes required by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency.  As the federal process 
moves forward, the state must provide resources to help 
cities update comprehensive plans and development codes.  
This issue will have a number of impacts and assistance in the 
form of model codes, staff resources, grants, and other 
expertise will be necessary for cities trying to implement any 
changes or additional work. 
 

53



Energy 

Legislation Background 
E.  Changes to 1.5 Percent Green Energy 
Technology Requirement 
 
Advance legislation to statutorily modify the 
existing “1.5 percent green energy technology 
for public buildings” requirement to allow for 
alternative investment options such as offsite 
solar or community solar projects. 
 

Oregon statute currently requires public contracting agencies to 
invest 1.5% of the total contract price for new construction or 
major renovation of certain public buildings on solar or 
geothermal technology.  The requirement allows for offsite 
technology, but only if the energy is directly transmitted back to 
the public building site and is more cost-effective than onsite 
installation. 
 
Removing the requirement that an offsite project be directly 
connected to the public building project could result in increased 
flexibility for local governments to invest in solar projects that are 
more cost-effective and provide for increased solar energy 
generation.  In addition, the League will work to allow 1.5 percent 
funds to be invested in alternative projects that provide a greater 
economic or social return on investment.  As an example, a city 
could use the funds on a community solar project to benefit low-
income residents rather than being required to invest in solar 
generation at the site of the public building project. 
 

F.  Funding for Public Energy Projects 
 
Support enhanced incentives for public energy 
projects including grants for technical 
assistance, feasibility studies and resource 
recovery projects for energy and fuel 
generation. 
 

There are programs that exist in Oregon for the purpose of 
incentivizing energy projects including renewable energy 
generation, alternative fuel vehicles, and energy efficiency.  
Programs such as the Business Energy Tax Credit (BETC), which 
was discontinued in 2014, and the State Energy Loan Program 
have been important tools for incentivizing energy projects for 
local governments.  However, as a result of scrutiny over the 
administration of these incentives including private loan defaults, 
these programs are either no longer available, such is the case 
with the BETC program, or are at risk of being discontinued.  It is 
critical for municipalities to have ongoing access to incentive 
opportunities as energy projects can be difficult to pencil-out and 
even more difficult for smaller communities to finance.  The state 
of Oregon should take into consideration that loans for public 
energy projects, including cities, are lower-risk and should not be 
penalized in light of recent scrutiny.  In addition, investments in 
these projects often result in environmental, social and economic 
benefits including long-term savings for taxpayers and reductions 
in greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
The League will work to enhance funding, including grants for 
technical assistance and feasibility studies for communities that 
currently do not have access to resources.  The League will also 
advocate for incentives for energy and fuel generation projects.  
Examples of projects that warrant funding incentives include 
methane capture for fuel or energy generation, investments in 
community solar projects, renewable energy generation, and 
energy efficiency improvements. 

  

54



  

Energy (Continued)  

Legislation Background 
G.  Require Updates to Oregon Energy Code 
 
Require the Oregon Building Codes Division 
(BCD) to engage in more frequent review of the 
state’s energy code to reduce greenhouse gas 
reductions and ensure that Oregonians can 
more affordably and efficiently heat their 
homes and businesses. 
 

Oregon’s statewide energy code for commercial and residential 
buildings is an important tool for achieving greenhouse gas 
reductions through decreased energy consumption while helping 
to ensure that Oregonians are able to more efficiently and 
affordably heat their homes and businesses.  Federal law requires 
each state to certify that their state energy code is equivalent to 
federal model energy codes.  While Oregon was once a leader in 
energy code adoption and implementation, the state is now in a 
position of falling behind the federal code.  This is due, in large 
part, to a decision made by the Oregon Building Codes Division in 
2013 which changed the code cycle from a three-year update to a 
six-year update.  Major code changes, including adoption of 
national codes, will now occur every six years with minor changes 
occurring every three years.  This change will impact Oregon’s 
ability to keep pace with federal standards and new technologies 
in energy efficiency. 
 
The League will work to support efforts to align new construction 
building codes with the state’s climate goal timelines.  In addition, 
the League will support efforts to establish a periodic review 
schedule to ensure that Oregon more frequently updates the state 
energy code in order to reflect federal code requirements.  Also, 
the League will encourage the state to set specific targets for 
increased energy efficiency in residential and commercial building 
construction with specific goals for increasing energy efficiency 
standards for affordable housing projects and increasing use of 
net-zero and passive house building requirements.  Finally, the 
League will work to require BCD to make regular reports back to 
the legislature to update on energy code implementation and 
goals. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



Finance and Tax  
Legislation Background 
H. Property Tax Reform – Market Value / Local  

Control 
 

A legislative constitutional referral to reform the 
property tax system: 
 

a) to achieve equity, transitions to a market 
based property tax valuation system; and 

b) to restore choice, allows local voters to adopt 
tax levies and establish tax rates outside of 
current constitutional limits in their taxing 
jurisdictions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Property taxes are regulated largely by Measure 5 (1990) and 
Measure 50 (1997), as provided in the Oregon Constitution.  
Measure 50 established a new method for assessing 
property, discounting the assessment at 10 percent of the 
real market value and calling this assessed value.  Assessed 
value is capped at an annual growth limit of 3 percent.  As a 
state total, due to the limits and market changes, the gap 
between real market value and assessed value has now 
grown to nearly 25 percent over the past 20 years.  This gap 
varies widely on a property by property basis, creating 
considerable property tax inequities for properties that sell 
for similar prices in a city.  In short, Oregon property taxes 
have become disassociated from real market value and the 
result is considerable inequity. 
 
For FY 2014-15, 60 percent of cities, 97 percent of counties, 
and 89 percent of school districts had some compression.  
This means that the Measure 5 caps of $5 per $1000 for 
education and $10 per $1000 for general government on real 
market value have been exceeded in most taxing 
jurisdictions. The caps are over 25 years old and were set low 
as voters were anticipating a sales tax to be coupled with it.  
Voters can no longer vote for the services they desire due to 
these caps.  With looming PERS costs increases, paying for 
services with the present restrictions will become very 
difficult in some cities. 
 

I. Property Tax Reform – Fairness and Equity 
 
A bill that pursues statutory modifications to the 
existing property tax system that enhances the 
fairness and adequacy of the current system.  
 

There are some adjustments to the property tax process and 
calculations that can be done statutorily.  These include 
altering the changed property ratio statute and the statutory 
discount given to property owners who pay their taxes by 
November 15th.   New property is added to the tax rolls using 
a county-wide ratio (assessed value to real market value) for 
determining the discount to apply to the real market value 
and that could be changed statutorily to a city-wide ratio in 
taxing districts who elect the change. 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

 

  

56



Finance and Tax (Continued) 

Legislation Background 
J. Local Lodging Tax 

 
A lodging tax bill, the outcome of which, would: 
 

a) Provide jurisdictions greater flexibility to 
spend local lodging tax revenue to plan for 
and provide services and infrastructure 
related to tourism;  

b) Reduce or eliminate the required 
reimbursement charge that a lodging tax 
collector is allowed to retain for filing a local 
lodging tax return; and 

c) Improve efficiency and collection of local 
lodging taxes in cooperation with the state.  
 

State law restricts how local lodging tax revenues may be 
expended. Post 2003, any new taxes or any tax increase 
requires a 70 percent revenue dedication to tourism 
promotion or tourism-related facilities.   In addition, state 
statute provides that cities may not lower the actual 
percentage of lodging tax revenues that were dedicated to 
tourism prior to 2003.  This means that cities have varied 
percentages of restricted local lodging taxes revenues.  These 
numbers are arbitrary as they were set based on 
circumstances in 2003 that have often greatly changed.  In 
addition, the legislative history shows that the legislature 
intended to provide some revenue flexibility and provide that 
certain infrastructure (roads, sewer lines, etc.) would qualify 
as tourism-related but the statutes need revision and 
clarification.   
 
State law requires local governments to provide a 5 percent 
collector reimbursement charge if they impose a new lodging 
tax or tax increase after January 1, 2001.  This is a deduction 
from the taxes that would otherwise be due.  The state also 
provides a 5 percent collector reimbursement charge for 
state lodging taxes.  In addition, local governments that had a 
reimbursement charge, must continue it.  Thus, cities have 
very different reimbursement requirements—some are at 
zero, others are at 5 percent, and some are in between.  
When coupled with the state deduction, the deduction seems 
too generous. 
 
The Oregon Department of Revenue now collects state 
lodging taxes throughout the state and could collect and 
enforce local lodging taxes at the same time if given statutory 
authority.  Local governments could then enter into voluntary 
agreements with the state to delegate the collection.  This 
option could make collection much more efficient and cost-
effective for some local governments.  In addition, cities 
continue to struggle with collections and auditing, particularly 
from online companies and private home rentals (through 
Airbnb, etc.) and this area of the law could be improved.     
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

57



Finance and Tax (Continued) 

Legislation Background 
K. Nonprofit Property Tax Exemption 

 
Clarify and reform the statutory property tax 
exemption provided to nonprofit entities to address 
cost-benefit concerns for the continued full exemption 
in light of cost of city services provided to nonprofits 
and the changing services and business models of 
some nonprofit entity types.  

 

Nonprofit organizations that are charitable, literary, 
benevolent or scientific are provided a property tax 
exemption that will cost more than $194 million in the 2015-
17 biennium.  In addition, exemptions for the property of 
nonprofit religious organizations costs more than $113 
million for the biennium.  For many cities, much of the city is 
exempt from property taxes due to the public property 
exemption and these nonprofit exemptions.  This includes 
hospitals, nursing homes, etc. 
 
The Legislature has formed a work group to look at the 
nonprofit property tax exemption issue as the nature and 
number of nonprofits is changing and the administration of 
the exemption has become complex for county tax assessors.  
Nonprofit entities require significant services, including 
transportation, water, sewer, police, fire, etc.  Thus, the 
legislature is looking at property taxes more as a service tax 
and considering how the full exemption could be adjusted to 
have nonprofits pay for their fair share of costs of services or 
otherwise meet a benefit test for continuing an exemption.   
 

L. Marijuana and Vaping Taxes 
 

Defend against restrictions and preemptions regarding 
local marijuana and vaping taxes and advocate for 
appropriate state shared revenue levels and 
distribution formulas for state marijuana taxes and 
potential vaping taxes. 

There are no revenue use restrictions on local marijuana 
taxes, but the local marijuana tax rate is capped at 3 percent.  
There are no restrictions on local governments imposing a 
vaping tax.  The state has not imposed a tax on vaping 
products to date but is considering a tax.  Often when the 
state imposes a tax (for example, cigarette or liquor), the 
state preempts local governments from also imposing a tax.   
 
10 percent of state marijuana taxes will be distributed to 
cities after state administrative costs.  Distributions will be 
made per capita for revenues received prior to July 1, 2017.  
After July 1, they will be distributed based on the number of 
the various marijuana licenses issued in a city.  Cities that 
prohibit establishments for recreational marijuana producers, 
processors, wholesalers or retailers will receive no state 
shared revenue.  Likewise, cities that prohibit a medical 
marijuana grow site or facility will receive no state shared 
revenue.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



General Government   
Legislation Background  
M.  Restore Recreational Immunity 
 
Cities should enjoy protection from unreasonable 
litigation when offering recreational opportunities to 
the public.  
 

ORS 105.682 grants that a land owner is not liable for any 
personal injury, death or property damage that arises out 
of the use of their land for recreational purposes as long as 
no fee is charged in order to access that property.  This 
statute allows cities to operate parks and trails without 
fear of lawsuit.   
 
However, in the recently decided Oregon Supreme Court 
case, Johnson v Gibson, It was held that even though the 
landowner may be immune from liability, their employees 
are not.  As a result, two employees of the City of Portland 
were found liable for injuries sustained by a jogger in a 
park, employees who are indemnified by their employer.   
 
The practical effect of this ruling is that the immunity 
previously enjoyed by cities that allowed for robust park 
development have been eroded to the point of being non-
existent.  This priority directs LOC staff to seek to amend 
the ORS 105.682 to restore that immunity.   
 

N.  Increase Local Liquor Fees 
 
Cities play an important role in the review and 
investigation of liquor license applicants and should 
be able to recoup costs associated with that role.  

ORS 471.166 allows cities to adopt fees that are 
“reasonable and necessary to pay expenses” associated 
the review and investigation of liquor license applicants.  
However, the same statute limits the amounts of those 
fees to between $25 and $100 depending on the license or 
approval being sought by the applicant.   
 
This priority is to pursue changes to this statue that allow 
cities to recoup the actual costs associated with 
performing their role in the liquor licensing process and 
allowing for periodic increases.   
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

59



General Government (Continued)   

Legislation Background  
O.  Continue Marijuana Legalization Implementation 
 
Allow for civil enforcement of marijuana laws.  
Ensure equitable distribution of marijuana shared 
revenues. 
Eliminate limitations on shared revenue use. 

One of the promises made by marijuana legalization 
advocates is that illicit sales and production of marijuana 
would shift into a legalized and regulated market.  This has 
occurred to a large extent but many producers and 
retailers continue to seek the financial benefits or 
participation in the marijuana industry while avoiding the 
inconvenience of its regulatory framework.  This priority 
seeks legislation that gives the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission (OLCC) the same civil and administrative 
authority to prevent unlicensed sales and production of 
marijuana as it has in regards to liquor.   
 
Beginning in 2017, state shared revenue from marijuana 
will be distributed to cities based in the number of OLCC 
licensed commercial marijuana entities exist in their 
jurisdiction.  This priority is to alter that arrangement so 
that is it distributed on a per capita basis to ensure 
equitable distribution among cities that are incurring 
costs.  
 
Measure 91 required that money distributed by the state 
to cities be used exclusively for costs associated with 
marijuana legalization.  Tracking a dollar though a city’s 
general fund and determining if a service was related to 
marijuana is inefficient if not impossible, and is not 
imposed for the receipt of liquor revenue.  This priority is 
to advocate for legislation that removes this burden.   
 

P.  Protect Mental Health Investments Made in 2015 
 
Oregon made significant and strategic investments in 
protecting and caring for the mentally ill in 2015 that 
should be maintained.   

The Legislature increased access to mental health care and 
expanded existing, proven programs designed to de-
escalate police contacts with the mentally ill.  Those 
programs could be vulnerable in a difficult budget 
environment made challenging by increased PERS rates.   
 
This priority is defensive in nature and seeks to preserve 
investments that are improving the lives of mentally ill 
Oregonians.   
 

Q.  Remove Qualification Based Selection Mandate 
 
Cities should be allowed to consider cost when making 
initial contract award decisions when hiring architects 
and engineers.   

Cities are currently required to use a procurement method 
that prevents the consideration of cost when contracting 
with architects and engineers for public improvements.  
Instead, cities must base their initial selection for these 
services based solely on qualifications and can only 
negotiate the price after an initial selection is made.  
 
This mandate is not a cost effective means for procuring 
services and is poor stewardship of the public’s dollars. 
This priority is to seek the removal of this mandate.   

60



 

Human Resources   
Legislation Background 
R.  Repeal Requirement to Subsidize Retiree Health 
Insurance  
 
Public employers should not subsidize the health 
insurance of former employees when reasonable, cost 
competitive options exist.   

ORS 243.303 mandates that local governments provide 
retirees with access to health insurance and requires that 
they be placed in the same risk pool as active employees.  
As retirees are approximately 2.5 times more expensive to 
insure than active employees this mandate results in 
employers and current employees subsidizing the health 
insurance costs of former employees.  This subsidization, 
according the Government Accounting Standards Board, 
must be shown on an audit as long term liability, thus 
creating an inaccurate perception of a city’s financial 
condition.  Further, this requirement could be described as 
anachronistic as individuals are now able to purchase 
health insurance under the Affordable Care Act. 
 
This priority is to eliminate ORS 243.303 from Oregon’s 
laws.   
    

S.  PERS Reform 
 
PERS benefits should be adjusted where legally 
allowable and investments should be maximized to 
ensure a sustainable and adequate pension system. 

The PERS unfunded liability stands at $22 billion and 
employer rates are anticipated to approach 30 percent of 
payroll in the coming biennium.  Rates are expected to 
remain at that level for the next twenty years.  This is not 
sustainable. 
 
This priority is to seek any equitable changes to benefits 
that will reduce employer rates while not pursuing options 
that are legally tenuous or counterproductive.  Additionally, 
changes are to be sought to the investment portfolio that 
will maximize returns through improved risk management 
and efficiencies. 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

61



  

Human Resources (Continued) 

Legislation Background 
T.  Arbitration Changes  
 
Public employers should have greater influence over 
the disciplining of their employees.   

Currently under the Public Employee Collective Bargaining 
Act, contested employee discipline matters must be 
submitted to an outside arbitrator for adjudication. 
Decisions by arbitrators are binding unless the conduct was 
a violation of public policy as defined by the state, there 
was serious criminal conduct or an egregious inappropriate 
use of force.  
 
This priority is to seek the following changes to the statue:  

 Arbitrator decisions should also comply with local 
policies; 

 Decisions should comply with policies related to 
any inappropriate use of force a; 

 Arbitrator decisions should recognize all criminal 
misconduct related to employment not just 
“serious”; 

 Employer disciplinary decisions as it regards 
employees who are supervisors as defined by the 
EEOC and BOLI should be given more weight.   

 
U.  Veterans Preference Clarifications  
 
Requirements that veterans be given preference in 
public sector hiring should be clear and unambiguous 
for the benefit of veterans and employers.   

The State of Oregon requires and the League agrees that 
honorably discharged veterans deserve special 
consideration in public sector hiring.  However, statutes 
describing how this is to be accomplished are unclear and 
ambiguous.  Vague statutes do not serve the interests of 
employers or veterans. 
 
This priority seeks a clear definition of “preference” in the 
statute, ensure that recently separated veterans receive 
the consideration necessary for them to successfully enter 
the workforce and establishes clarity as to when the 
preference is to be applied.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

62



Telecommunications,  
Cable & Broadband 

Legislation Background 
V.  Rights of Way 
 
Oppose legislation that preempts local authority to 
manage public rights-of-way and receive 
compensation for their use. 
 

In its commitment to the protection of Home Rule and local 
control, the League consistently opposes restrictions on the 
rights of cities to manage their own affairs.  From time to 
time, in the context of franchise fee and rights-of-way 
management authority discussions, proposals to restriction to 
this authority arise.  These include a statewide franchise 
policy and revenue collection system as well as limiting the 
ability of cities to charge fees of other government entities.  
This is contrary to local government management authority, 
the ability to enter into agreements with service providers 
either by agreement/contract or ordinance and to derive 
revenues from business fees charged to users of public rights-
of-way. 
 

W.  Franchise Fees 
 
To ensure market fairness and equity, prepare 
legislation for possible introduction repealing ORS 
221.515 (HB 2455 -7 in 2013, and HB 2172 in 2015) to 
remove franchise fee rate and revenue restrictions 
which currently apply to incumbent local exchange 
carriers but not to competitive local exchange carriers. 
 

Oregon statute currently contains a discrepancy between 
how cities collect franchise fees from incumbent local 
exchange carriers (ILECs) and competitive local exchange 
carriers (CLECs).  ORS 221.515 limits cities collecting franchise 
fees from ILECs to a maximum of 7 percent of revenues 
derived from dial-up services, which represents only a portion 
of ILEC total revenues due to the addition of a broader array 
of customer services.  There is no such rate cap or revenue 
restriction on CLECs, hence the discrepancy.  In the past the 
League has worked with CLECs to “level the playing field.”  
Repeal of ORS 221.515 would accomplish that. 
 

X.  9-1-1 Emergency Communications 
 
Support legislation enhancing the effectiveness of the 
state’s emergency communications system through an 
increase in the 9-1-1 tax and/or a prohibition of 
legislative “sweeps” from accounts managed by the 
Oregon Office of Emergency Management. 

The League worked with other stakeholder groups in 2013 to 
extend the sunset date on the statewide 9-1-1 emergency 
communications tax to January 1, 2022 (HB 3317).  In 2014, 
the League also worked to pass legislation including prepaid 
cellular devices and services under the 9-1-1 tax (HB 4055).  
As concerns mount with regard to disaster preparedness and 
recovery and as new upgrades to communications technology 
becomes available, it is apparent that state and local 
governments do not have the resources necessary to address 
challenges or take advantage of opportunities.  Additional 
funding is needed and the practice of periodically sweeping 
funds out of the state’s emergency management account for 
other uses should cease.  It is worthy of note that the practice 
of “sweeps” disqualifies the state from receiving federal 
funds for emergency communications.  It is unknown how 
many federal dollars have been foregone as a result of this 
policy. 
 

  
  
  

63



Telecommunications,  
Cable & Broadband (Continued) 

Legislation Background 
Y.  Technology Funding 
 
Seek additional funding to assist for cities in: 
 

 Increasing high speed broadband deployment 
and close the digital divide. 

 Purchasing upgraded emergency management 
communications equipment. 

 Providing local match money for federal 
funding programs, such as high speed 
broadband deployment. 

 

The deployment of broadband throughout the state of 
Oregon is critical to economic development, education, 
health and the ability of citizens to link with their 
governments.  Additional funding, from various sources, 
including the state and federal government, needs to be 
allocated for this purpose.  The need becomes even more 
acute when consideration is given to the certainty of a major 
seismic event.  Often federal assistance comes with the 
requirement of a state or local match which is problematical 
for cities.  A state mechanism for providing matching fund 
assistance would be helpful to those communities seeking to 
take control of their broadband destiny. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



Transportation 

Legislation Background 
Z.  Comprehensive, Multi-modal Transportation 
Funding and Policy Package 
 
The League of Oregon Cities proposes that 
transportation infrastructure be raised to the same 
level of importance as other utilities, and be funded at 
a level capable of maintaining appropriate standards 
of operation and service. Therefore, the League will 
help draft and advocate for a comprehensive, inter-
modal and statewide transportation funding and 
policy package that: 
 

1. Provides a significant increase in resources 
available for the preservation and 
maintenance of city streets by: 

 

 Substantially increasing the state gas tax 
and licensing and registration fees. 

 Indexing the state gas tax. 

 Continuing efforts to identify and 
implement alternative funding 
mechanisms (VMT, tolling, public-private 
partnerships, etc.). 

 Disaster resilience and seismic upgrades 
for all transportation modes. 

 The completion of transportation projects 
begun but not yet completed due to lack 
of funding or changes in funding criteria. 

 Providing additional funding for voluntary 
jurisdictional transfer. 

 Funding transportation enhancements 
such as bike-ped facilities. 

 Increasing funding for the statutory 
Special City Allotment program while 
maintaining the 50%-50% ODOT/city split. 

 Repealing the referral requirement (2009 
Jobs and Transportation Act) on cities 
seeking to create/increase local gas tax. 
 

2. Addresses statewide needs relating to 
intermodal transportation through: 

 

 Additional funding for transit operations 
and capital projects. 

 Additional funding for freight rail capital 
projects and operations (ConnectOregon, 
short-line rail and transload facilities). 

Maintenance and preservation needs have outpaced the 
resources available for streets, roads and highways.  In its 
March, 2016 Infrastructure Survey Report the League 
identifies a $3.7 billion capital need for highway and non-
highway transportation projects ($2.6 billion highway / $1.1 
billion non-highway).  In addition, the report shows, for the 
120 cities that participated, an aggregated street budget 
shortfall for operations and maintenance of approximately 
$217 million per year.  Safety and disaster resilience were 
cited as major challenges and needs by most cities.  Cities 
also expressed support for a voluntary jurisdictional transfer 
program (the sensible alignment of highway facilities and 
management responsibility) provided the availability of 
adequate funding to facilitate the transfer and to maintain 
the asset. 
 
Given the threat that inadequate funding represents to 
investments already made in the transportation system, the 
League will insist on a transportation package that increases 
and makes more sustainable the ability of all government 
jurisdictions to preserve and maintain these assets. 
Notwithstanding its emphasis on the need to preserve and 
maintain existing streets, the League of Oregon Cities agrees 
that the state’s transportation system and the policy and 
funding programs that support it must be multimodal and 
statewide in scope.  The League will therefore work to pass 
legislation in 2017 that addresses funding and policy 
initiatives relating to all modes (streets, bike/ped, transit, rail, 
aviation and marine) and in so doing address such issues as: 
 

 Connectivity and capacity (especially truck 
mobility/rail) 

 Safety for all users across all modes 

 Resiliency and recovery (seismic retrofit across all 
modes) 

 Jobs and economic development 

 Impact on climate change 

 Active transportation and public health 

 Transportation access available on an equitable basis 
to all Oregonians 

 Continuing and extending ConnectOregon 

 Ensuring adequate new revenues for 
program/equipment such as the Oregon Department 
of Motor Vehicles technology upgrade 

 Creative solutions to ongoing challenges (dedicated 
non-roadway fund, increased local authority to fund 
transit, bike-ped funding, etc.) 

65



 Additional funding for passenger rail 
operations, equipment and capital 
projects (federal matching money and 
AMTRAK Cascades). 
 

3. Does not: 

 Preempt local government ability to self-
generate transportation revenues for 
street maintenance and preservation. 

 Change the dedication of State Highway 
Fund dollars to highway, road and street 
projects contained in Article 8, Section 3a 
of the Oregon Constitution. 

 Reduce cities 20% share of the State 
Highway Fund. 

 Create unfunded mandates requiring cities 
to undertake specific programs, such as 
greenhouse gas reduction scenarios. 

 Further complicate the planning and 
regulatory process that currently governs 
the project delivery process. 

 Maximizing local benefits of the federal FAST Act in 
Oregon 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



Water & Wastewater  
Legislation Background 
AA.  Funding for Water System Resilience 
 
Secure dedicated funding for water and wastewater 
system resilience and emergency preparation.  This 
would include additional funds to plan for and 
upgrade water systems to increase seismic resiliency 
and funding to better position communities to better 
prepare for water supply shortages due to drought, 
climate change or other emergency scenarios.   
 

In general, Oregon’s drinking water and wastewater systems 
are woefully underprepared for a catastrophic earthquake 
event.  Restoration of water supply following such an event is 
critical for fire suppression, first aid, and for human health 
and safety.  In 2013, the Oregon Resilience Plan provided 
estimates for service recovery of water and wastewaters 
systems in the event of a Cascadia earthquake under current 
infrastructure conditions.  According to the plan, the 
estimated the timeframe for service recovery in the valley 
ranges from one to twelve months.  For the coast, service 
recovery is estimated between one to three years.   
 
In addition to risks associated with significant natural disaster 
events, recent drought conditions in Oregon have 
demonstrated the need for emergency supply planning and 
coordination with other water users to better address water 
supply challenges.  It is critical that communities are able to 
acquire alternative and back-up water supplies from multiple 
sources in order to better prepare for supply shortages or 
emergency situations, such as natural disasters or supply 
contamination. 
 
The League will work to identify and secure low-interest loans 
or grants to seismically upgrade drinking water and 
wastewater system infrastructure and to help ensure that 
these systems are more resilient and better positioned to 
respond to water supply shortages resulting from drought, 
climate change, natural disasters, or other system failures.  
 
     

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

67



  

Water & Wastewater (Continued)  

Legislation Background 
BB.  Promote an Enhanced Prescription Drug Take-  
        Back 
 
Advocate for enhanced prescription drug take-back 
program funding and additional collection locations to 
reduce contamination of water from unwanted 
prescription drugs. 
 

Unused prescription drugs are problematic from both a public 
health and safety perspective as well as from a water quality 
perspective.  Drug take-back programs help to ensure that 
unused prescription drugs are properly disposed of which 
keeps them from being abused, keeps them out of the hands 
of children, and keeps them from entering Oregon’s 
waterways.  Unwanted prescription drugs are often flushed 
down the toilet and despite wastewater treatment systems, y 
can end up contaminating lakes, streams and rivers.  In 2014, 
U. S. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) expanded the 
types of locations allowed to accept unwanted medications 
including retail pharmacies and drug manufacturers.  Prior to 
2014, drug-take back programs were primarily supported 
through police department drop boxes.  The challenge in 
expanding prescription drug take-back programs is now 
focused on the cost of transporting unused drugs from the 
take-back location to the disposal site and in educating the 
public about responsible disposal opportunities.  
  
The League will work with a variety of stakeholders, including 
public health advocates, to identify additional funding 
mechanisms to increase drug take-back collection locations 
across Oregon.  Funding should support the transportation 
and responsible disposal of unused prescription drugs.  Funds 
should also be dedicated for enhanced education of disposal 
opportunities and the establishment of convenience 
standards to ensure that all Oregonians have reasonable 
access to drug take-back locations.    
 

CC.  Increased Funding for Water Supply Development 
 
Support additional water supply funding through the 
state’s Water Supply Development Account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

According to a survey conducted by the League, Oregon’s 
water and wastewater infrastructure needs for cities alone 
are estimated to be $9 billion over the next twenty years.  In 
addition, the survey identified 66 percent of respondent cities 
as being in need of additional water supply storage.  The 2015 
drought highlighted the need for additional investments in 
water supply infrastructure, including storage and water 
delivery system efficiencies.  Additional storage project 
investments are not only critical for adequate drinking water 
supply, they are an important tool for supplementing 
streamflows and habitat restoration.  
  
The League will work to secure additional funding for existing 
water supply development programs.  This includes support 
for feasibility grants and for the state’s Water Supply 
Development Account which provides funding for water 
supply storage, reuse, restoration and conservation projects. 

 

68



Subject: Re: mowing city property  
  
Tom,  thanks for the quick response of your city crew.   
  
It’s nice to see city business operate so efficiently. 
  
Steve Juul 
  

From: Tom Corrigan  
Sent: Tuesday, June 07, 2016 3:13 PM 

To: sdjuul ; Bret Marshall ; Chance Metcalf  

Cc: Joan Dean ; Bob Ullman ; Kip and Jeri Keeton ; Anne Taylor ; Joyce Leighton  
Subject: Re: mowing city property 

  

Thank you for writing to us.  The City has a 10 member crew from the County this week trying 
to catch up on all of the weeding in the City.  The notable first spots are along major roads such 
as Rapp Rd.   

We are also handling all of the areas of Public Works where your development adjoins ours. 

 
Thx, 
Tom 

 
From: sdjuul <sdjuul@charter.net> 
Sent: Monday, June 06, 2016 4:18 PM 
To: Talent Oregon 
Cc: Joan Dean; Bob Ullman; Kip and Jeri Keeton; Anne Taylor; Joyce Leighton 
Subject: mowing city property  
  
Att.  Tom Corrigan, 
  
We are part of the Oak Valley HOA community. 
A number of our neighbors have voiced concern about the weed situation in the Wacker’s 
Hollow park area adjacent to and part of our emergency egress from the neighborhood. 
  
Since the City seems to stay on top of mowing rules for the whole community, please deal with 
this area.  We don’t want another potential fire disaster like we saw a couple of years ago. 
  
Please let us know the response to this problem area. 
Regards, 
Steve Juul, 337 Quail Circle 
 

69

mailto:TCorrigan@cityoftalent.org
mailto:sdjuul@charter.net
mailto:BMarshall@cityoftalent.org
mailto:cmetcalf@cityoftalent.org
mailto:joandean@charter.net
mailto:rob.barb@charter.net
mailto:kjkjlk2015@charter.net
mailto:fjeik@yahoo.com
mailto:joyce.leighton@gmail.com



